
RFP 25-001 
Term Contract for Inmate Medical Services 

Q&A #3 
 
 

Question 1: Please provide a copy of the current Fort Bend Jail health services contract,  
  including any exhibits, attachments, and amendments. 
 

Answer: Please visit: 
https://agendalink.co.fort-
bend.tx.us:8085/mindocs/2023/CCTR/20230328_3765/3563%5F4
0B%5Fsigned%5Fagreement%5F%2D.pdf  

 
https://agendalink.co.fort-
bend.tx.us:8085/mindocs/2023/CCTR/20230926_3829/minutes/363
0%5F40K%5Fsigned%5Famendment%5F%2D.pdf  

 
Question 2: Please provide (by year) the amounts of any staffing penalties the County has  
  assessed against the incumbent vendor over the term of the current contract. 

 
Answer:  None 
 

Question 3: Please provide (by year) the amounts and reasons for any non-staffing penalties/  
  liquidated damages the County has assessed against the incumbent vendor over  
  the term of the current contract. 
 

Answer:  None 
 

Question 4: Is the Jail currently subject to any court orders or legal directives? If “yes,”  
  please provide copies of the order/directive. 
 

Answer:  The jail receives court orders and other legal directives on a regular 
basis for all types of things. Copies will not be provided. 

 
Question 5: With regard to lawsuits (frivolous or otherwise) pertaining to inmate health care: 
 

a. How many have been filed against the County and/or the incumbent health care   
    provider in the last three years? 
b. How many have been settled in that timeframe? 

 
Answer:  This information would need to come from the County Attorney’s 

Office. 
 

Question 6: Thank you for the Q4 2022/Q1 2023 population data supplied with the RFP. We  
  are looking for a larger amount of data to analyze and trend. Can the County  
  please provide the following data regarding the size of the inmate population? 
 

a. Three years’ worth of facility-specific historical data 
b. Five-year population projections- We do not have projections available.  
c. Three years’ worth of historical data on the number of intakes. 
 
Answer:  See attached documents. 

https://agendalink.co.fort-bend.tx.us:8085/mindocs/2023/CCTR/20230328_3765/3563_40B_signed_agreement_-.pdf
https://agendalink.co.fort-bend.tx.us:8085/mindocs/2023/CCTR/20230328_3765/3563_40B_signed_agreement_-.pdf
https://agendalink.co.fort-bend.tx.us:8085/mindocs/2023/CCTR/20230328_3765/3563_40B_signed_agreement_-.pdf
https://agendalink.co.fort-bend.tx.us:8085/mindocs/2023/CCTR/20230926_3829/minutes/3630_40K_signed_amendment_-.pdf
https://agendalink.co.fort-bend.tx.us:8085/mindocs/2023/CCTR/20230926_3829/minutes/3630_40K_signed_amendment_-.pdf
https://agendalink.co.fort-bend.tx.us:8085/mindocs/2023/CCTR/20230926_3829/minutes/3630_40K_signed_amendment_-.pdf


Question 7: Is the County aware of any upcoming legislation or government policy that could  
  result in a drop in its inmate population (e.g., compassionate release, population  
  reduction measures, etc.)? If yes, please describe and provide a timeframe for the  
  legislation/policy implementation. 
 

Answer: No 
 

Question 8: Is the Jail currently accredited, e.g., by the American Correctional Association  
  (ACA), National Commission on Correctional Health Care (NCCHC), Joint  
  Commission, Commission on Accreditation of Rehabilitation Facilities (CARF),  
  etc.? If “yes,” please provide the following information. 
 

a. Name of the entity that awarded the accreditation 
b. Most recent accreditation date for the facility 
c. Copy of most recent accreditation audit report for the facility 
 
Answer:   No 
 

Question 9: With regard to health care staffing at the Jail, please clarify what the two different 
  staffing plans in the RFP’s Excel spreadsheet represent, e.g., contract-required  
  staffing, staffing that is currently in place, the County’s desired staffing, etc. 

 
Answer:  The current staffing matrix is being submitted with another 

questionnaire.  The proposed staffing matrix is attachment 5 of the 
RFP.   

 
Question 10: Please provide a listing of any current health service vacancies, by position. 
 

Answer:  None 
 

Question 11: What amount of agency/temp/travel nurse staffing (if any) is the incumbent  
  vendor using? Please provide % of contract hours, by position. 
 

Answer:  None  
 

Question 12: Please indicate the length of time each of the following staff members has been in 
  their position at the Jail. 
 

a. Site Director of Nursing (DON)-   3 years 
b. Site Medical Director- Dr. Prekash-  5 months 
 

Question 13: Please confirm that if the awarded vendor retains existing health care staff who  
  are already credentialed, those incumbent staff will not need to go through the  
  credentialing all over again with the new vendor. 

 
Answer:  It will be up to the awarded vendor to determine who they wish to 

retain.  No new background would be required for current staff.  
 

  



Question 14: Please provide the salaries/wages your incumbent health service Vendor is  
  paying to its staff at the Jail. 

 
Answer:  Refer to the salary range that is included in the RFP. It is up to the 

awarded vendor to determine the pay for their employees. 
 

Question 15: Please confirm that labor hours in the following categories will count toward any  
  “hours provided” requirements of the contract. 
 

a. Time spent by health care staff in orientation, in-service training, and 
continuing education classes 

b. Overtime hours 
c. Agency hours 
d. Approved paid-time-off 
 
Answer:  N/A  
  a) No (Counted separate from contract hours) 
  b) Yes  
  c) Yes  
  d) No (Counted separate from contract hours) 
 

Question 16: Does the County maintain any full-time information technology (IT) staff at the  
  Jail? If not, please describe any County IT resources that would be able to assist  
  with hardware/software tasks that need to be performed hands-on, in person at the 
  Jail. 
 

Answer:  Yes 
 

Question 17: Please provide the name and version of the offender management system   
  software currently in use at the Jail. Does the County have any plans to change to  
  a different system within the next few years? 
 

Answer:  Tiburon.  No. 
 

Question 18: With regard to health care staff accessing the County network, please provide the  
  following information. 
 

a. Currently, are the computers used by health care staff on (a) the County 
network or (b) a private network supplied by the health care vendor? 
b. Will this scenario continue under the new contract? 
c. Will the County permit the incoming health care vendor to utilize existing 
network infrastructure at the facilities, e.g., wiring, switches, etc.? 
 
Answer:  Yes, to all.  

 
  



Question 19: With regard to health care staff accessing the Internet, please provide the   
  following information. 
 

a. Do vendor staff access the Internet through (i) a County network or (ii) the 
vendor’s network? 
b. Please describe how this currently happens, i.e., what type of hardware, wiring, 
and connectivity is in place. 

 
Answer:  The internet is accessed through the County network. Standard 

hardware and connectivity. Internet is hardwired and wireless. 
 

Question 20:  Is there currently WiFi capability within the Jail? 
 
a. If “yes”, who is providing the capability, (a) the incumbent vendor or (b) the 
county? 
b. What hardware is utilized to provide the WiFi capability? 
c. How many wireless access points exist within the Jail? 

 
Answer:  a. County 
 b. 85 WAPS  
 c. 85 WAPS 

 
Question 21: With regard to timeclocks or other timekeeping devices, please provide the  
  following information. 
 

a. The number of time clocks in place at the Jail 
b. Where in the building they are located (for example, in the lobby, at the 
security sally ports, in the medical unit, etc.) 
c. Will the County allow the incoming Contractor connect its time clocks to the 
County network? 
 
Answer:  a. 2 
  b. Infirmary Nurse Station & Intake Nurse Station 
  c. Yes 

 
Question 22: We understand that the County currently utilizes the CorEMR electronic health  
  record (EHR). Please provide the following information: 
 

a. What version of CorEMR is in place: 5x or 6.0? 
b. Where and by what company/agency is the EHR currently hosted? 
c. RFP page 24 states, “The chosen vendor … will use, continue to pay, continue 
upgrades when available from CorEMR.” Please clarify exactly what EHR-
related costs the Vendor will be responsible for, as the RFP asks for a Cost-Plus 
contract and therefore all EHR costs should be reimbursed by the County. 
d. For each of the past three years, please provide the amount of the above-
referenced EHR-related costs. 
e. Will the County allow authorized providers and other staff not located onsite at 
the Jail to have remote access to the EHR? 
f. What interfaces are currently in place with the existing EHR, for example, the 
Offender Management System, the current pharmacy subcontractor, the current 
lab services contractor, etc.? 

 



Answer: a. 6.0 
  b. On-site 
  c. Monthly hosting fee negotiated by vendor;  
  d. Contact vendor for this information 
  e. Yes 
 f. JMS (Tiburon) one-way to CorEMR, CorEMR two-way to 

Pharmacy (Diamond), Lab (LabCorp) one-way to CorEMR 
 

Question 23:  Does the Jail currently utilize telehealth? If so, please provide the following  
  information. 
 
  Answer: Yes 
 

a. Description of any equipment that will remain in place for the new vendor to 
use 
b. Description of the telehealth connectivity (network) that will remain in place 
for the new vendor to use 
c. The type of telehealth clinic (e.g., telepsychiatry, telecardiology, etc.) 
d. How often each telehealth clinic is currently conducted (e.g., weekly, monthly, 
as-needed, etc.) 
e. The length of each telehealth clinic currently conducted (e.g., day, half-day, 
etc.) 
f. The average number of patients in each telehealth clinic 
g. The name and contact information for the tele-provider who conducts each 
telehealth clinic 
 
Answer: a. Webcam/computer 
  b. None; currently provided by vendor 

c. Recommendation from mid-level provider for E.R. send outs 
qualified as urgent but not emergent  

  d. As-needed 
  e. As-needed 
  f. 1 
  g. Provided by medical vendor 
 

Question 24:  Are any x-ray services currently provided onsite? If “yes,” is this done (a) with  
  permanent County-owned xray equipment or (b) through a mobile radiology  
  vendor (PLEASE IDENTIFY VENDOR)?  
  

Answer:  Yes, mobile radiology vendor. 
 

Question 25:  Are any optometry services currently provided onsite? If “yes,” is this done (a)  
  with permanent County owned optometry equipment or (b) through a mobile  
  optometry vendor (PLEASE IDENTIFY VENDOR)? 
 

Answer:  No 
 

  



Question 26: RFP Section 31.2.2.1 Fit for Jail states, “Incoming inmates will be evaluated by  
  nursing staff to determine if a “Fit for Jail” is needed before the inmate will be  
  accepted into our facility. Respondent will be responsible for processing payment  
  and safeguard against payment of any invoices for “Fit for Jails” not authorized  
  by County.” Please provide the following information on this topic. 
 

a. If nursing staff deem an individual NOT fit for Jail and send them to the 
hospital, who is financially responsible for the cost of such hospital care? 
b. On average, how many “Fit for Jail” assessments are conducted each month? 

   
  Answer: a. County 
    b. 33 

 
Question 27:  Does the County participate in any programs or legislation (e.g., the Affordable  
  Care Act, Medicaid expansion, State law, etc.) that mandate special discounts for  
  inpatient care for Jail patients? If “yes,” please provide the following information. 
 

a. Name and brief description of the program 
b. What services are discounted under the program? 
c. Who is responsible for enrolling Jail patients in the program? 
d. Please provide the current processes and timeframes for (a) enrollment in the 
program and (b) payment at the program’s discounted rates. 

   
Answer:  No.  The county prefers the vendor negotiate Medicare/Medicaid 

rates with outside contractors.  
 
Question 28: With regard to any specialty care clinics currently conducted onsite at the Jail,  
  please provide the following information. 
 

a. The type of specialty clinic (e.g., orthopedics, neurology, etc.) 
b. How often each specialty clinic is currently conducted (e.g., weekly, monthly, 
as-needed, etc.) 
c. The length of each specialty clinic currently conducted (e.g., day, half-day, etc.) 
d. The average number of patients in each specialty clinic 
e. The name and contact information for the provider who operates each specialty 
clinic 

 
  Answer:  a. Nephrology 
    b. As-needed 
    c. None 
    d. 1 
    e. Contracted by vendor 

 
Question 29: Please identify the number, type, and timeframes of any backlogs (chronic care  
  clinics, offsite referrals, dental encounters, etc.) that currently exist at the Jail. 
 

Answer:  None 
 

  



Question 30: Please provide the following information about any medical, behavioral health,  
  or other special needs units (infirmary, addiction recovery, sex offender, geriatric, 
  skilled nursing, hospice, etc.) at the Jail. 

a. Type of each unit 
b. Location of each unit 
c. Capacity of each unit 
d. Average occupancy of each unit 
e. Staffing for each unit 
f. Type of services/Acuity able to be handled in each unit 

 
Answer:  a. Medical Housing 
  b. East Tower – 1st Floor 
  c. 16 beds 
  d. 12 inmates,  
  e. 1 officer, no medical staff 
   f. Medical observation, assistive devices 
 

Question 31: Thank you for the Q4 2022/Q1 2023 mental health data supplied with the RFP.  
  We are looking for a larger amount of data to analyze and trend. Can the County  
  please provide the following mental health data for all of 2021, the rest of 2022,  
  the rest of 2023, and 2024 year-to-date? 

 
a. Number of inmates on suicide watch each month 
b. Number of suicide attempts 
c. Number of successful suicides 
d. Number of self-injurious behavior incidents 

  
Answer:  Data is unavailable post-upgrade to latest version of CorEMR. 
 

Question 32: With regard to Medication-Assisted Treatment (MAT)/ Medications for Opioid  
  Use Disorder (MOUD) programs, please provide the following information. 
 

a. Please describe any MAT/MOUD program that the Jail currently has in place. 
b. Please provide the Jail’s current protocols for determining who receives 
MAT/MOUD treatment. 
c. For each of the past two years, please provide the average number of Jail 
patients receiving 
MAT/MOUD treatment. 
d. Please indicate which of the three FDA-approved MAT/MOUD drugs the Jail 
currently uses/prescribes 
in its program(s) and provide a breakdown of how many patients are being 
prescribed each medication. 
e. Is the Jail currently using any long-acting injectable MAT medications for its 
incarcerated patients? 
f. Is the Jail certified as an Opioid Treatment Program? 

 
Answer:  N/A; Vendor does not participate in these programs. 
 

  



Question 33: With regard to medication administration. 
 

a. Who administers the medications (RNs, LPNs, or other position)? 
b. Is the current process: (a) med carts go to the housing units or (b) patients come 
to the medical unit? 
c. How often does med pass occur each day? 
d. On average, (a) how many FTEs and (b) how long does it take to perform a 
med pass?  
 
Answer:  a. LVN’s and RN’s 

 b. Both (a) Med Carts go to the housing units and (b) Patients come 
to the medical unit 

  c. 3 times/day 
  d. (a) 1.5 FTE’s, (b) 4 hrs (x2)/day and .5 hrs (x1)/day 
 

Question 34: Please provide copies of the following documents. 
 

a. The drug formulary currently in use 
b. The most recent pharmacy report 
c. The lab test formulary currently in use 

 
Answer: This information is proprietary to the current vendor. 
 

Question 35: What percent of prescribed medications are kept as stock meds? 
 
Answer:  Approximately 90% 
 

Question 36: On average, how many patients per month receive these types of prescription  
  drugs? 
 

a. Psychotropic medications 
b. Hepatitis C medications 
c. HIV/AIDS medications 
d. Medications to treat bleeding disorders (e.g., hemophilia, Von Willebrand 
disease, etc.) 

 
Answer: a. Approximately 330 
  b. 0 
  c. 14 
  d. 0 
 

Question 37: Does the County currently participate in any 340B pharmacy discount programs?  
  If “yes,” please provide the following information about the program. 
 

a. What specialties (categories of medication) does the 340B agreement cover, 
e.g., HIV meds, Hepatitis C, 
cancer, etc. 
b. Please identify the Federally Qualified Health Center (FQHC) or other 340B-
certified health care entity 
whose physicians are prescribing the drugs for the current program. 
c. Which pharmacy is providing the 340B medications? 



Answer:  No 
 
Question 38: Thank you for the Q4 2022/Q1 2023 health utilization data supplied with the  
  RFP. We are looking for a larger amount of data to analyze and trend. Can the  
  County please  provide the following health utilization data for all of 2021, the rest 
  of 2022, the rest of 2023, and 2024 year-to-date? 
 

a. Number of (offsite) inpatient hospital admissions 
b. Number of (offsite) inpatient hospital days 
c. Number of outpatient surgeries 
d. Number of outpatient referrals 
e. Number of trips to the emergency department (ED) 
f. Number of ED referrals resulting in hospitalization 
g. Number of ground ambulance transports 
h. Number of air ambulance transports 

  i. Number of dialysis treatments 
 

Answer:  Please see the attached documents 2021-2024 Health Services 
Statistical Reports.  

 
Question 39: Thank you for the 5 months of budget data supplied with the RFP. We are   
  looking for a larger amount of data to analyze and trend. Can the County please  
  provide budget data for all of 2021, all of 2022, the rest of 2023, and 2024 year- 
  to-date? 
 

Answer:  See attached documents. Excel spreadsheets titled Fort Bend 
Trended Detailed Expense Statements.  This is all that is available.  

 
Question 40: RFP Section 31.3.9 states, “Respondent shall be responsible for the costs of all  
  drugs administered.” Please clarify the meaning of this statement, as the RFP asks 
  for a Cost-Plus contract and therefore the cost of pharmaceuticals for the health  
  care program should be reimbursed by the County. 
 

Answer:  The respondent is responsible for the upfront cost to adequately 
stock the pharmacy. The cost would be passed through to county. 

 
Question 41: RFP Section 31.5.1 states, “The Respondent should be prepared to provide  
  whatever stock supplies are required to perform under the contract. Respondent  
  will also supply at its expense, all other supplies required to carry out its   
  performance.” Please clarify the meaning of this statement, as the RFP asks for a  
  Cost-Plus contract and therefore the cost of supplies for the health care program  
  should be reimbursed by the County. 
 

Answer:  The respondent will have the initial expense to ensure medical is 
adequately stocked with all necessary supplies.  The cost could be 
passed through to county. 

 
  



Question 42: RFP Section 31.5.2 states, “The Respondent at its sole expense, shall purchase  
  medical and office equipment needed to perform services pursuant to the contract 
  with an individual item cost of $5,000 or less.” Please clarify the meaning of this  
  statement, as the RFP asks for a Cost-Plus contract and therefore the cost of  
  equipment for the health care program should be reimbursed by the County. 
 

Answer:  Disregard section 31.5.2.  That was outdated language that should 
have been deleted however, equipment purchases where the cost will 
be passed through to County need to be approved by County prior 
to purchase to ensure the equipment meets the standards that may 
be required by County.  

 
Question 43: RFP Section 32.4 states, “All permits and licenses required by federal, state or  
  local laws, rules and regulations necessary for the implementation of the work  
  undertaken by the Respondent pursuant to the contract shall be secured and paid  
  for by the Respondent. This shall include fees associated with NCCHC   
  accreditation and periodic accreditation reviews.” Please clarify the meaning of  
  this statement, as the RFP asks for a Cost-Plus contract and therefore the cost of  
  licensure and accreditation fees for the health care program should be reimbursed  
  by the County. 
 

Answer:  Permits and Licenses required as stated above for the provider to 
conduct their business shall be secured and paid by the respondent. 
Our facility is not accredited. Licensing fees and continuing 
education requirements for employees of the respondent shall be at 
the expense of the respondent and not reimbursed.  

 
Question 44: RFP Section 32.5 states, “All costs related to the removal and disposal [of  
  infectious or hazardous waste] shall be at the expense of the Respondent.”  
  Please clarify the meaning of this statement, as the RFP asks for a Cost-Plus  
  contract and therefore costs for removing the health care program’s medical waste 
  should be reimbursed by the County. 

 
Answer:  This would be a pass-through cost and would be reimbursed by the 

County. 
 

Question 45: Under the new contract, will there be any costs relating to the Jail health care  
  program for which the County will NOT reimburse the selected Vendor (i.e., cost  
  categories exclude from the Cost-Plus model)? 
 

Answer:  This would be handled during contract negotiations.   
 

Question 46: Please provide the formula (or other methodology) the County will use to evaluate 
  and score vendors’ submitted budgets/prices. 
 

Answer:  This information was included in the RFP.  Refer to the scoring 
percentages.  

 
 




































